
UNITED NAT DlïiSIOri L l í í i l i lS l iO U f

^ F C T i O N  D c 5 KÉFÉ: t i^CES

G E N E R A L
A S S E M B L '

D istr.
GELTSEAL

A/CONF.95/SR.1 
11 September 1979

Originals ENGLISH

Е Е

UNILED NATIONS CONFERENCE ON PROHIBITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS OP USE 
OF CERTAIN CON'VENTIONAL LEAPONS ЬШСН M Y EE DEEMED TO BE 
EXCESSIVELY INJURIOUS. OR TO HAVE. ПШБСЕШШАТЕ. EFFECTS . .

SITMi'IARY REGOPJ) OP THE FIRST MEETING

held at the Pa la is des Nations, Geneva, 
on Monday 10 September 1979/ at 9*00 p.m.

Temporary Presidents Mr, COTTAPAYI (D irector-General,
United Nations O ffice  at Geneva)

President; Mr. ADENIJI (N ig e r ia )

CONTENTS

Opening o f the Conference 

Organization o f the Conference;

Appointment o f the President

Adoption o f the agenda

Adoption o f the rules o f procedure

Appointment o f O fficers  other than the President

Appointment o f members o f subsidiary organs

Organization o f work

This record is  subject to correction .

Corrections should be submitted in  one o f the working languages. They should 
be set fo rth  in  a memorandxm and also incorporated in  a copy o f the record. They 
should be sent w ithin one week o f the date o f th is document to the Chief, O f f ic ia l  
Records Ed iting Section, room E-6108, Pa la is  des Nations, Geneva,

Any corrections to the records o f the meetings o f the Conference V iill be 
consolidated in  a s ingle corrigendum to be issued shortly  a fte r  the end o f the 
Conference.



Â/C0KF.95/SR.1
•oafi’e. 2-

'Tlie meeting’ was ca lled  to order at 3»20 p.m.

OFEiIIîîG- OP TÍ-IE’ COrlPEEENGE (item  1 o f the provis ional agenda)

1. The lEI-IPOBARY PHESIhENT declared open the United Nations Conference on 
Proh ib itions or llestr ic tion s  o f Use o f Certain Conventional Ueapons t.liicli Hay 
he Deemed to Be Excessively Injm?ious or to Have Indiscrim inate E ffec ts ,

2. On the proposal o f the Temporary President, the Conference observed э. minute
o f  silence fo r  prayer or m editation.

3. The DEI'gOriilB.Y PPESIDENT, spealcing on behsHf o f the Secretarj^'-General, said
that the Conference was a major attempt by the United Nations to achieve agreement
on certain  practica.! disarmament mea,sures. Tie in ternational coimmonity had r ig h t ly  
accorded p r io r ity  to nuclear disarmament, but there was increasing concern about 
the dangers posed by the development and a.pplication o f weapons which,., though 
conventional, ob litera ted  the d is tin c tion  between m ilitarjr and non-militarjr 
targets or ob jects. Unpre ce dente dlj^ rapid advances in  weapons teclinology now 
threatened to n u ll i fy  the considerations underlying in ternational hiomanitarian
law applicable to a.rmed c o n flic ts .

4. Tie deliberations preceding the Conference had y ie lded  the conclusion that 
that threat could be e f fe c t iv e ly  a.verted by s tr ik in g  a judicious balance between 
humanitarian concerns and the requirements o f  m ilita ry  security. Tn the l ig h t  
o f that understanding, he f e l t  i t  h is duty to urge participants to bu ild  upon 
the found-ations la id  by the Preparatory Conference in  1978 and thus make a 
d is t in c t and tangible contribution to the cause o f disarmament, world, peace and 
secunity.

5. The task o f the Conference was a complex one, fo r  the issues before i t  were 
concerned not only with the conventional weapons whose use might be proh ib ited or 
re s tr ic ted  but also with the technical characteristics  and e f fe c ts  o f such 
weapons. But the problems were by no means insurmountable, and he hoped that, 
through a combination o f realism and compassion, the Conference would prove that 
i t s  ob jectives were eminently atta inable.

6. In todajr's world the unforeseen ram ifications o f  the arms race constituted a 
challenge to a l l  Powers, gr.eat, medium or small, to employ th e ir  c o lle c t iv e  - 
in te llig en ce  and v is ion  in  fa c i l i t a t in g  progress towards disarmament. The
a.chievement o f in ternational agreements to p roh ib it or r e s t r ic t  the use o f the 
weapons dea lt -with by the Conference would promote such progress. , He expressed 
h is best wishes fo r  the success o f the Conference,



а/С01'Ш.95/ЗН.1
page 3

ORGAíIIZáTIüH OF THE COííFEfíEHCE (iter,] 2 o f  the provisional a.genda)

(a ) АРРОП'ШМ'ТТ OP THE PEGSIDEITT

7‘ The TEMPuRAxS' PPiESIDEIIT ca lled  fo r  nominations fo r  the o f f ic e  o f  President o f 
the Confei-ence. ■ .

8. Mr. GIIAEEIfl-IAlf (In d ia ) nomina,ted Hr. Adon iji (i í ig e r ia ) ¿

9* Mr. ТНШТ (German Democratic Republic) and Mr. CIIAPuRY SIJIPSR (Colombia) seconded 
the nomination. - . ,

10. Mr. Adeni.ji (тдегРа^ттаз elected  President by acclamation.

11. Mr. A den iji (h ig e r ia ) tool; the CIiair>

12. The PRESIDEIiT ss,id that the possession o f  arms foi* the, defence o f what nations 
believed  to be th e ir  in terests  was as o ld  as manlcind, and so was concern at the 
consequences o f the use o f  such азллз. The greater' the soph istication  o f  the 
instruments o f war, the greater was that concern. .

13» The f i r s t  resu lt o f  common e ffo r ts  to reduce the horrors o f wa,r had been the
Declaration o f  S t. Petersburg, o f  1868, which la id  dovm the important princip le  
that the on ly .leg itim ate  ob jective  o f  States in  war was to weaken the enemy's 
m ilita ry  forces , and that the use o f arms that needlessly aggravated the su ffering
o f  disabled men or rendered th e ir  death in ev itab le  should be avoided. The 
Hague Conferences held at the turn o f  the century had carried that p rin c ip le  fu rther 
by starting that the r igh t o f  b e lligeren ts  to adopt means o f in juring the enemy vras 
not unlim ited, and had prohib ited, in te r  a l ia , the use o f  dumdum b u lle ts . The 
Geneva Protocol o f  1925 had subsequently prohibited the use o f asphyxiating poisons 
or other gases as w e ll as the use o f  b a c te r io log ica l methods o f v/ariare.

1 4 . V/ith the great technological advance in  weaponry in  recent years, a number o f  
væapons had been ieveloped which by th e ir  na,ture, method o f use or e f fe c t  might be 
thought considerably to exceed the strik ing capacity required to incapacitate enemy 
forces . Indeed, some o f  those weapons might also be considered indiscrim inate in  
th e ir  e f fe c ts ,  since they a ffec ted  both combattants and non-combattants and might 
strike  at both m ilita ry  and non-railitary ta rgets , thus ninning "counter to the 
pi'ovisions o f  in ternational humanitarian latr. ,

15* The e f fe c t  o f  the uncontrolled Use o f mauiy such weapons had novfhere been more 
apparent than in  the so-ca lled  "bush wars'*, p a r t ic u ls jly  in  Asia and A fr ica , v/here, 
despite the unequal strength o f the adversaries, unspealcable b ru ta lity  vas '



¿ /с о и ?  ,9 5 / S E . l
page 4

nevertheless o ften  displayed. Additiona.l Pi'otocol I I  to the Geneva. Conventions 
had taken account o f those non-traditional wars, hut rules dealing d ire c t ly  with 
the conduct o f  h o s t i l i t ie s  had to he worked out in  lin e  with the development o f  la,ws 
rela..ting to the .himanitarian aspects.

16. The Conference could not have been held at a more auspicious time, since 
unprecedented public in te res t in  issues o f world security  had been aroused by the 
convening', in  1 9 78? o f ■fche f i r s t  special session o f  the General Assembly devoted to 
disarmament. That session had confirmed the danger which the continued accuimulation 
o f  armaments and the 1з.ск -o f progress tox-rards disarmament constituted fo r  the 
survival o f  manlcind. A comprehensive Programme o f Action had been adopted, but 
a fte r  more than a year i t  had hardly begun to be implemented. Part o f that 
Programme re la ted  to the-present Conference, a.nd paragraph 86 o f  the fin a l 
document o f  the special session (a/S-IO/cj) stated that the Conference should seek 
agreement, in  the l ig h t  o f humanitarian a‘nd m ilita ry  considerations, on the - 
p roh ib ition  or r e s tr ic t io n  o f  use o f certa in  conventioneJ weapons including those 
which might cause unnecessa.ry suffering' or have indiscrim inate e ffe c ts , and that
the Conference should consider sp ec ific  ceHegories o f such xreapons, including those 
that had been the subject-matter o f previously conducted discussions. The 
Conference would therefore make p. s ign ifican t contribution to disarmament i f  i t  could 
show that the Programme o f  Action could be e f fe c t iv e ly  implemented.

1 7 . He did not underrate the complexity o f the task, since i t  would not be easy to 
strike the necessary balance, betx^een humanitaria,n concerns and m ilita ry  requirements. 
I t  could, hoxiever, be done and participants ox/ed i t  to humanity to exert th e ir  best 
endeavours to bring the Conference to a successful conclusion.

18. Great b en e fit xíould he derived from the x-rork done by the Px'eparatory Conference 
at i t s  txTO sessions, during which a broad exchange o f viexvs had been held and a number 
o f  proposals had been put forward. He hoped that the deliberations ox the 
Conference xxould be marked, by unity o f рих-розе and co-opera.tion and x-rould be 
conducted in  a s p ir it  o f dedicakion to the cause o f  humanita.rian law and o f 
disarmament.

(b ) ADOPTION OF TIE AGENDA

19* The provis ional agenda (a /GOIE.96/i ) vras a,dopted.

(c )  ADOPTION OP TIE EÜHËS OP PHOCEDUiE (A/CONP.95/2)

20. The FIESIDENT drexí a tten tion  to the provisional rules o f procedure recommended
by the Preparatory Confei-ence (а/СОИ?.95/2) and to paragraph 59 o f the report o f , 
the Preparatory Conference (a/CONF.95/3)> which re ferred  to the question o f 
decision-making,



A/COIIP. 95/sr. 1
page 5

21. Mr. ISSRAELYAH (Union o f Soviet S o c ia lis t  Republics) pointed out, in the 
Russian tex t ru le 11, paragraph 2, the words "in  making decisions" had been 
mistranslated as "in vo tin g ".

22. Mr. de la  GORSE (France) observed that a s im ilar mistake had been made in the 
French text o f ru,le 31*

2 3 . The PRESIDENT said that the Secretaria t would take the necessary steps to 
bring the various language versions into lin e  w ith each other.

2 4 . The provis ional rules o f procedure (a/C0I1F.95/2) were a,dopted.

(d ) АРРОШТМЕЖТ OF OFFICERS OTHER TlDilf THE PPlESIDEHT .

2 5 . The PRESIDEHT announced that, in accordance with the rules o f procedure, the 
Conference had to appoint 11 Vice-Presid.ents, the Rapporteur, the Chairman o f the 
Coimmittee of the Шю1е and the Chairman of the D rafting Comj-nittee. Those o f f ic e r s ,  
who, together vrith the President, constituted the Genera,! Committee, had to be 
a-ppointed so as to ensure the representative character o f that Committee. He 
understood that thé regional groups wished to have time to hold consultations and 
he therefore suggested that discussion ox the question should be deferred u n til the 
fo llow ing meeting.

2 6 . I t  was so agreed. , .

(e )  АРР0ШТ1ЕНТ OP №№ERS OF SHBSIDIAEY ORGMS

2 7 . The PRESIDEi'TT drew attention to the fa c t  that under ru le 4, ps-ragraph 1, of 
the rules of procedui-e, the Conference had to a,ppoint, on the proposal o f the 
President, f iv e  members o f the Credentials Gormiiittee. He su.ggested that the 
membership o f the Committee should be the same as that o f the Credentials Committee 
o f the Preparatory Conference, namely-EcuоЛo r , Plorocco, Poland, the Syrian Arab 
Republic and United States o f America,.

28. I t  was so agreed.

2 9 . The PRESIDENT said that, under ru le 34s paragraph 1, o f the rules o f procedure, 
the Conference had to estab lish  a D rafting Coim'nittee consisting o f 10 memhei-s, 
including i t s  Chairman, v/ho wa,s to be appointed pursuant to ru le 6, He suggested 
that the Conference should defer a,ppointrnent of the members o f the D rafting 
Committee so as to allow time fo r  consultations .

3 0 . I t  was so agreed.



1/сода.95/sr .1
pare б

(g ) ORGAI'IIZATIObI CE WOPJC -

5 1 . The PRE3IDEHT sa,icl that since the Conference had only three weeks in -̂/hich to 
complete i t s  work, i t  was impere.tive to use the ava ilab le time as e f f ic ie n t ly  as 
possib le , pa.rticu larly in' the case o f 3.genda item 5 . Since э. gen-eral debate had 
been held at the f i r s t  session o f the Preparatory Conference, in which many 
delegations had partic ipated , and since a number o f sta,tenients had been maxle at 
plenary meetings a.t the second session, he thought that the -period devoted to . 
general statements should be confined to the f i r s t  week of the present Conference.

3 2 . V/ith respect to the-s-tructure -of the Conference and the ta.slcs o f particu lar 
organs, the Preparatory Conference, in -para.graph 40 o f its  report, ha.d recommended 
that the question o f an "umbrella trea ty" with optionaJ protocols or clauses 
embodying proh ib itions or res tr ic tion s  o f use of certain conventional weapons 
deemed to be excessive ly  injurious or to have indiscrimina/ce e ffe c ts  should be 
taken up in a subsidiary orga,n, which should commence it s  work iiiimediately a fte r  
the"opening of the Conference. In that connexion he suggested that, as provided 
fo r  in ru le 35 o f the rules of procedure, a working group should be set up to deal 
with the matter. In view of the lim ited  time a.vailable, that working group should 
be in a position to report to the Confei-ence bjr the middle o f the fo llow ing week.

33* With respect to the consideration o f prohibitions or res tr ic tion s  o f use of 
sp ec ific  categories o f wea.pons, he reca lled  tlmt a number o f -proposaks had been 
submitted during the two sessions o f the Preparatory Conference. In addition, a.t 
i t s  second session, the Preparatory Conference had adopted re-ports containing texts 
on certain weapons. He suggested that those texts shoxild be re ferred  inmiediately 
to the Committee of the b lio le, which could estab lish  working grou-ps as ap-propria.te.

34 • I t  was so agreed.

The meetina rose at 4.10 -p.m.


